
 

 

 
Date of issue: 9th March, 2015 

 
  

MEETING  STANDARDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
(Councillors M Holledge (Chair), A S Dhaliwal, Dhillon, 
Matloob, Sandhu and Usmani) 

  
 CO-OPTED INDEPENDENT MEMBERS: 
 Graham Davies, Ronald Roberts and Alan Sunderland 
  
 PARISH COUNCIL MEMBER:- 
 Councillor S Bryant (Colnbrook with Poyle) 

Councillor H S Gahir (Wexham Court) 
Councillor O Isernia – (Britwell) 

  
 INDEPENDENT PERSON  

Dr Louis Lee 
  
DATE AND TIME: TUESDAY, 17TH MARCH, 2015 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: MEETING ROOM 2, CHALVEY COMMUNITY CENTRE, 

THE GREEN, CHALVEY, SLOUGH, SL1 2SP 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

SHABANA KAUSER 
 
01753 787503 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 

 
 

RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

PART 1 
 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
1.   Declarations of Interest 

 

  

 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary or other Pecuniary or non pecuniary Interest 
in any matter to be considered at the meeting must 
declare that interest and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Section 3 paragraphs 3.25 – 
3.27 of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct, leave the 
meeting while the matter is discussed, save for 
exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.28 of the Code.  
 
The Chair will ask Members to confirm that they do not 
have a declarable interest. All Members making a 
declaration will be required to complete a Declaration of 
Interests at Meetings form detailing the nature of their 
interest. 

 

  

2.   Minutes of the last meeting held on 18th June 
2014 
 

1 - 4  

3.   Membership 
 

- - 

 To note that Graham Davies and Dr Loius Lee 
have been appointed to the Committee as 
Independent Co-Opted Member and 
Independent Person respectively.    
 

  

4.   Proposal to Merge Audit and Risk and 
Standards Advisory Committee 
 

5 - 16 All 

5.   Schedule of Activity - Code of Conduct 
 

17 - 18 All 

6.   Members Attendance Record 19 - 20 All 
 
   

 Press and Public  

   
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an observer. You will 
however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in the Part II agenda.  Please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer shown above for further details. 
 
The Council allows the filming, recording and photographing at its meetings that are open to the public.  
Anyone proposing to film, record or take photographs of a meeting is requested to advise the Democratic 
Services Officer before the start of the meeting.  Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming 
should not move around the meeting room whilst filming nor should they obstruct proceedings or the public 
from viewing the meeting.  The use of flash photography, additional lighting or any non hand held devices, 
including tripods, will not be allowed unless this has been discussed with the Democratic Services Officer.  
 



Standards Advisory Committee – Meeting held on Wednesday, 18th June, 
2014. 

 
Present:-  Councillors M Holledge (Chair), Matloob (Vice-Chair), A S Dhaliwal, 

Dhillon, Sandhu, Roberts, Sunderland, Parish Councillor Bryant and 
Gahir 

  

Co-opted Independent Members:- 

 Ronald Roberts and Alan Sunderland 

  

Parish Council Members:- 

 Parish Councillors Bryant and Gahir 

  

Apologies for Absence:- Councillor Usmani  
Fred Ashmore (Independent Person) 
 

 
PART 1 

 
1. Introductions  

 
As it was the first meeting of the new year, the Chair introduced himself to the 
Committee and invited all Members to do the same. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
None was declared. 
 

3. Minutes of the last meeting held on 18th March 2014  
 

Resolved -  That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 18
th
 

March 2014 be approved as a correct record. 
  
Arising from minute 13 [The Localism Act 2013 – Raising the Standards?] the 
Committee was informed that it was proposed to bring forward a paper about 
anti-corruption measures in local government to both this Committee and the 
Audit and Risk Committee in September 2014, with the possibility of a joint 
meeting of the two Committees if this was appropriate.  With regard to the 
suggestion about the possibility introducing a maximum period of service on 
Planning Committee, it was noted this would require an amendment to the 
Council’s Constitution.  This would be raised as an item for the Member Panel on 
the Constitution, but Members were invited to discuss support for the matter at 
political group level.  
  
With reference to minute 14 [Draft Annual Review May 2013 to March 2014] 

this had been received and endorsed by the Council at its meeting on 22
nd
 

April 2014. 
 

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 2



Standards Advisory Committee - 18.06.14 

4. Introduction to the Role of the Committee  
 

Kevin Gordon, the Council’s Monitoring Officer, gave a presentation introducing 
the role of the Committee.  Article 9 of the Constitution set out the composition, 
roles and functions of the Standards Advisory Committee and the Standards 
Determination Sub-Committee (convened to consider and determine complaints 
following an investigation).  
  
Members were reminded of the importance of the Code of Conduct, adopted 
in its present form in July 2012, which set out the conduct the Council 
expected of its Councillors.  The Code began by laying down some 
overarching principles and included sections on how members conducted 
relationships with others, their interests, and how they managed information 
encountered in their duties as a Councillor.  
  
The adoption of the new Code of Conduct had been as a result of a revised 
standards regime for local authorities introduced by the Government.  This had 
included changes to the way complaints about Councillors were submitted and 
dealt with.  The Monitoring Officer explained the procedure in place to deal with 
complaints when they were submitted, beginning with an initial assessment of a 
complaint by him, in consultation with the Council’s Independent Person.  If it 
was considered that there had been no breach of the Code (for instance if the 
complaint was trivial or was not in relation to the subject member’s role as a 
Councillor) then no further action would be taken other than to record the 
complaint and report it to the Committee on the periodic activity report.  Where 
there was concern that there may have been a breach of the Code, the 
Monitoring Officer could seek an informal remedy of the complaint by speaking 
directly to the Member concerned and/or the relevant political group leader.  For 
more serious allegations, including those where more information was required 
to reach a conclusion, the Monitoring Officer would refer the matter for 
investigation.  Following receipt of the Investigating Officer’s report, containing a 
finding that the Code had been breached, a Standards Determination Sub-
Committee would be called, unless (in consultation with the Independent 
Person) a local resolution was considered to be appropriate, for example 
training for the member or mediation.  Where a Standards Determination Sub-
Committee was convened, there was a limited range of actions that could be 
taken, as set out in paragraph 6.14 of Part 5 of the Constitution, and examples 
of such actions were noted.  The Committee also noted that if a complaint 
identified any criminal conduct or breach of other statutory obligations, then this 
would be referred to the Police or other agency as appropriate rather than dealt 
with under the Council’s local complaints procedure. 
  
The Committee received answers to a number of questions on the complaints 
procedure, including the timescales within which they were dealt with.  It was 
noted that where an investigation was necessary, this could result in a 
complaint taking up to three months to dispose of.  It was hoped to reduce this 
time through the use of external investigators where appropriate. 
  
Resolved - That the presentation be noted. 
 

Page 2



Standards Advisory Committee - 18.06.14 

5. Appointment of Independent Person  
 
The Committee was informed that following advertisement of the position, a 
strong candidate had applied for appointment as the Council’s Independent 
Person.  Following interview by the Group Leaders, however, the applicant had 
withdrawn on account of the time commitment involved.   
  
It would now be necessary to re-advertise the position, but in addition it was 
proposed to enlist the assistance of consultants specialising in advice to local 
authorities on standards issues, to help find a suitable candidate(s).  In the 
meantime, Fred Ashmore, who was re-appointed at the Annual Meeting, would 
continue in the role of Independent Person. 
 

6. Review of Standards Training for Members  
 
The Committee considered a report about training in relation standards matters.  
A Member development session on Standards Training and the Code of Conduct 

was held on 3
rd
 June 2014 specifically targeted at newly elected Councillors, but 

open to all members to attend.  The session was attended by all 13 newly elected 
Members and 18 re-elected Members comprising a facilitated 1½ hour session 
using case studies and practical examples. 
  
To support facilitated sessions, some informal learning activities were being 
developed, including e-learning, to reinforce good practices.  A dedicated 
Members’ portal was also being set up to enable easy access for viewing 
relevant resources, documents and materials on the slough.gov website. 
  
Resolved -    That the report be noted. 
 

7. Schedule of Activity - Code of Conduct  
 
Consideration was given to an update on the activity undertaken by the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer in relation to complaints received under the Code of 
Conduct. 
  
A summary of the complaints received in the calendar year 2014 to date 
showed that just two had been received, both against Borough Councillors.  No 
further action had been taken on the first complaint since the investigation had 
concluded that no breach of the Code had taken place.  The Investigating 
Officer’s report was awaited in respect of the second complaint; a meeting of 
the Standards Determination Sub-Committee would be called to determine the 
matter, if required, dependant on the finding of the report. 
  
Resolved -    That the report be noted.  
 

8. Members Attendance 2013/14  
 
Resolved -    That the Members’ attendance record be noted. 

Page 3



 
9. Date of Next Meeting  

 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 10th September 2014. 
 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.25 pm) 
 

Page 4



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:             Standards Advisory Committee      DATE:  17th March 2015   
       
CONTACT OFFICER:    Kevin Gordon AD Professional Services 
(For all enquiries)  Joseph Holmes AD Finance and Audit 
    Catherine Meek Head of Democratic Services     

(01753 875011) 
     
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR DECISION 

 
Proposal to merge Audit and Risk and Standards Advisory Committee 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 

To consider merging the Council’s Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) and Standards 
Advisory Committee (SAC) into an Audit and Corporate Governance Committee (ACGC).  

 
2. Recommendations to Council  
 

(a) That the Standards Advisory Committee be disbanded and its terms of reference 
subsumed into the terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee with effect 
from the Annual Council meeting in May 2015. 

 
(b) That the Audit and Risk Committee be renamed the “Audit and Corporate 

Governance Committee”.  
 

(c) That Article 9 of the Constitution (Standards Advisory Committee be deleted and 
subsequent Articles re-numbered).  

 
(d) That existing Article 10 (Audit and Risk Committee) be amended as shown in 

Appendix 1 and the terms of reference and working arrangements of the Committee 
therein be approved.  

 
(e) That the membership of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprise*:  

 
Six councillors (politically balanced) (not the Leader, Mayor or Deputy Mayor, Chairs 
and Vice Chairs of Planning and Licensing Committee and Group Leaders*) 
Up to four co-opted (non-voting) independent members  

  The Council’s Independent Person (as an observer). 
 
      * executive members limited to one 

*one Member from each of the three Parish Councils in the Borough to be invited to 
attend and speak at the Committee if it is considering a report relating to changes to 
the Code of Conduct 

 
 
 

Page 5

AGENDA ITEM 4



(f) That the existing independent members on the Audit and Risk and Standards 
Advisory Committees be appointed to the ACGC for the 2015/16 municipal year as 
follows 

 

Mr G Davies 
Mr R Roberts 
Mr A Sunderland 
Mr A Kwatra 

 
(g) That a Standards and Determination Sub Committee be appointed by the Committee 

with membership, terms of reference and operating procedures as set out in 
Appendix A.  

 

(h) That the Head of Democratic Services make any consequential administrative 
amendments to the Constitution. 

 
3. Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 

 
The delivery of the Joint Wellbeing Strategy priorities is dependent on good governance 
arrangements being in place in order that the Council has a transparent and 
accountable process for effective decision-making.  This is underpinned by the Code of 
Conduct, which forms the bedrock of the conduct regime for Members and aims to 
ensure that ethical behaviour and governance of the highest order is maintained.   

 
3b. Five Year Plan Outcomes  
 

The proposals will contribute to the Council’s outcome of using resources wisely and 
ensuring good governance arrangements are in place.  

 
4.  Other Implications 
 
4.1 Financial 
  
 There are no immediate financial implications arising from this current report.  There may 

be modest savings on Special Responsibility Allowances which will be determined by the 
Council following a recommendation of the Independent Remuneration Panel.  There 
may be savings in officer support and/or room hire as a result of merging two existing 
Committees which will support the planned 16/17 savings in Democratic Services and 
Elections  

 
4.3 Risk Management 
 

Risk Mitigating action Opportunities 

Legal None at this stage  

Property – that the 
leisure needs of 
Slough cannot be met 
within the current 
facilities and open 
space and further 
investment is 
required which has a 
significant financial 

  

Page 6



impact 

Human Rights None  

Health and Safety None  

Employment Issues None  

Equalities Issues None  

Community – that the 
facilities that are 
provided do not meet 
the needs and 
aspirations of the 
Slough residents  

  

Communications None  

Community Safety None  

Financial  None  

Timetable for delivery  None  

Project Capacity None  

Other   

 
4.4 Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  

There are no direct Human Rights Act or other legal implications arising from this report. 
 

4.5 Equalities Impact Assessment   
An Equalities Impact Assessment  

 
4.6 Workforce 

There are no direct workforce implications arising from this report. 
 
5. Background 
 
  Standards Advisory Committee 
 
5.1 The Council established the Standards Advisory Committee in May 2012 as part of the 

Council’s consideration of the new Code of Conduct requirements of the Localism Act 
2011. Although there was no longer a statutory requirement for a standards committee, 
the Council agreed that a separate committee responsible for raising standards was both 
necessary and appropriate.  

 
5.2 The main role of the Committee is to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by 

members. The new regime introduced under the Localism Act has reduced the 
bureaucracy involved in the former regime’s investigation of allegations. The Code of 
Conduct adopted by the Council is clear in setting out Members’ obligations.  

 
5.3 The Committee consists of 6 members, three independent co-opted members and three 

Parish Council representatives.  The Council’s Independent Person also attends the 
Committee in a non voting capacity.  The Committee has one Sub Committee – the 
Determination Sub Committee. 

 
5.4 The Committee met twice in 2013/14.  The Committee’s annual review for 2013/14 noted 

that matters around member conduct were sufficiently light to enable two committee 
meetings during the year to be cancelled due to insufficient business.  Two complaints 

Page 7



have been received to date in 2014.  One was referred for investigation with no breach of 
the Code found and the other is awaiting the Investigating Officers report. 

 
5.5 It is noticeable that the role of the Committee has reduced under the new arrangements 

particularly as the Monitoring Officer now has delegated authority to seek to resolve a 
complaint informally where a formal investigation is not merited.  This removed the need 
for an Assessment Sub Committee to meet on receipt of a complaint.  .   

 
Audit and Risk Committee 

 
5.6 The Council’s Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for providing independent 

assurance of the adequacy of the Council’s risk management framework and provides 
independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non financial performance.  The 
Committee approves the financial statements and Annual Governance Statement.  

 
5.7 The Committee enhances public trust and confidence in the financial governance of the 

authority.  The Committee consists of 6 Members and one independent co-opted member.  
and meets four times a year. 

 
Proposal to merge Committees to create an Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
 
5.8 There are a number of drivers behind the proposal to merge the Standards Advisory and 

Audit and Risk Committee. 
 
5.9 Reduced complaint activity and complaints that give rise to a need to involve the 

Standards Advisory Committee in considering ethical issues, has meant that there is a risk 
that the ethical agenda is not as visible as it once was.  Some Council’s have added 
ethical standards to the terms of reference of their Audit Committee to ensure that the 
ethical agenda remains visible in the Council and to achieve a more joined up governance 
role for the Audit Committee.  There is no reason to believe that complaints alleging 
breaches of the code of conduct are likely to increase in the future. 

 
5.10 Similarities and synergies – both Committees deal with governance, probity and 

transparency of processes. 
 
5.11 Transparency International UK Report on Corruption in Local Government. This 

Organisation has issued a report with the key recommendation to Government being that 
the changes taking place in local government should be reviewed, to ensure that they do 
not inadvertently create an enabling environment for corruption.  Specific 
recommendations include introducing a statutory requirement for local authorities to have 
an audit committee, strengthened whistle blowing systems, enhancing audit procedures, 
extending the Nolan Principles and for local authorities to carry out a periodic corruption 
risk assessment in relation to their own functions and operations.  The Standards 
Advisory Committee was made aware of this report at its meeting on 18th March 2014 and 
it was agreed that a further report be made to a possible joint meeting of the Standards 
Advisory and Audit and Risk Committees as both Committees had responsibilities for 
governance and probity matters.   

 
5.12 Recruitment and Retention of co-opted members – there is currently one co-opted 

independent person on the Audit and Risk Committee and three independent co-opted 
people on the Standards Advisory Committee. Combining the roles of the two committees 
would both enable the Council to benefit from skills and input of independent people 

Page 8



across a broader area of responsibility and provide a more stimulating role for 
independent people which, in turn, will assist in retention. 

 
Role of the new Committee 
 
5.13 The newly merged Audit and Corporate Governance Committee would have the objective 

of making a positive contribution to the Council’s governance and control environment.  
The proposed terms of reference give the Committee a wide remit including advising and 
reviewing the Council’s arrangements for internal audit, internal control, risk management, 
financial management, standards and corporate governance. The Committee will also 
have an important role in ensuring public money is spent wisely and providing assurance 
to the public that the council is complying with the law, has an effective control framework 
in place and provides quality services in line with corporate priorities. 

 
5.14 As the Council has a role in the standards and conduct issues of Parish Councillors it is 

proposed that one Member from each of the three Parish Councils in the Borough be 
invited to attend and speak at the Committee if it is considering a report relating to 
material changes to the Code of Conduct for Members. 

 
5.15 Whilst recognising the benefits of merging the two Committees there is no wish to put 

additional pressure on the Committee’s work on risk management framework and its 
scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non financial performance and it is therefore 
proposed that a Standards and Determination Sub Committee be established to 
determine allegations of breaches of the Members’ Code of Conduct, on a reference from 
the Monitoring Officer and to undertake any detailed work necessary on the Code of 
Conduct, making recommendations to the Committee as necessary. 

 
5.16 The proposed membership/ terms of reference and operating guidance for the Sub 

Committee are set out at Appendix A. 
 
Requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014  
 
5.17 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 abolishes the Audit Commission and 

establishes new arrangements for the audit and accountability of local public bodies in 
England.   

 
5.18 Amongst other things the Act sets out the arrangements for the appointment of auditors 

by the Council. The Council is required to establish and take into account the views of an 
(Independent) Auditor Panel when selecting and appointing an auditor.  The Act provides 
flexibility for different arrangements that can reflect local circumstances and provides for 
different ways in which a body may meet the requirement to have an auditor panel.   
There may also be an option for local bodies to collectively procure an auditor which 
would avoid the necessity for each audited body to establish it sown auditor panel. 

 
5.19 The AD (Finance and Audit) will report further on the options available for the appointment 

of an Auditor at a future date. 
 
6. Comments of other committees 
 
6.1 This report is being considered by both the Standards Advisory and Audit and Risk 

Committees for recommendation to the Council.  The report will also be considered by 
the Member Panel on the Constitution. 

 

Page 9



 
 
 
7. Conclusion 
  
 It is proposed, in the light of experience, that the Standards Advisory Committee should 

be disbanded and its terms of reference subsumed into the terms of reference of the 
Audit and Risk Committee to create an Audit and Corporate Governance Committee. 

 
8. Appendices 
 
 A  Article 10 –Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
  
9 Background papers 
 
 None  

 
 

Page 10



APPENDIX A 
 
ARTICLE 10 – AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 The Council will appoint an Audit and Corporate Governance Committee  
 
1. Statement of Purpose 

 
The purpose of this Committee is to 

• promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members 

• provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
framework and the associated control environment, 

•  independently scrutinise the authority’s financial and non-financial 
performance, to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk 
and weakens the control environment and to oversee the financial 
reporting process 

• approve the financial statements 

• approve the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
Terms of Reference 

 
2. Within the Terms of Reference of the Committee it will be  
 

• the member forum for external auditors matters, approving the financial 
statements on behalf of the full Council 

• the member forum for ethical framework matters 

• the member forum for internal audit matters, 

• a key element of the internal control framework for the Council and take 
responsibility for the approval of the Annual Governance Statement on behalf of 
the full Council, 

• be the member forum for risk management matters, 

• be the member forum for corporate governance matters. 
  

Membership 
 
3 The Committee is subject to the provisions of the Local Government Access to 

Information Act 1985. 

  
4 The Committee will comprise*:  

Six councillors (politically balanced) (not the Leader, Mayor and Deputy Mayor, 
Chairs and Vice Chairs of Planning and Licensing Committee and Group Leaders*) 
Up to four co-opted (non-voting) independent members from outside the Council with 
suitable experience 

  The Council’s Independent Person (as an observer). 
 * executive members limited to one 
 * one Member from each of the three Parish Councils in the Borough to be invited to 

attend and speak at the Committee if it is considering a report relating to material 
changes to the Code of Conduct 

 
 In order to promote the independence of the Committee there should be limited cross 

membership between Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Audit and Corporate 

Page 11



Governance Committee limited to a maximum of 2 members.  Also Cabinet 
membership of the Committee is limited to one member.   

 
The Chair of the Committee will be an elected Member of the Council 

 
Working Arrangements 
 
5 That Committee will meet four or more times per year. 
 
6 The quorum of the Committee shall be a minimum of four members including at least one 

co-opted Member.    
 
7  The Committee will be subject to the statutory access to information provisions.  The press 

and public may be excluded and papers withheld from access only if they meet statutory 
definitions of exempt or confidential information. 

 
8 All Members of the Council and Members of the press and public can attend the Committee 

when it is discussing business in Part I of the agenda.  When the Committee is discussing 
exempt or confidential information (Part II) only Members of the Committee and Members of 
the Council (with the consent of the Committee given by majority resolution) can attend. 

 
9 The Committee will appoint a Standards and Determination Sub Committee to 
 

• determine complaints following an investigation. 

• Give detailed consideration to revisions to the Code of Conduct as necessary for 
recommendation to the Committtee. 

 

10 The Committee and its Sub Committee may require Members of the Council and Officers of 
the Authority to attend before it to answer questions. 

 

11 The Committee and its Sub Committee may require the production of any document or 
record in the possession of the Council to be submitted to it, unless to do so would involve a 
breach of data protection or other statutory provisions. 

 
12 The Committee may require the Monitoring Officer or his/her nominee to investigate on its 

behalf allegations of impropriety referred to the Committee.  
 
Specific Functions 

 
       The Committee’s specific functions shall include but not be limited to  
  
13  External Audit 
  

• To consider the external audit report to those charged with governance on 
issues arising from the audit of the accounts, and ensure that appropriate 
action is taken in relation to the issues raised 

• To consider the external auditor’s annual letter and ensure that appropriate 
action is taken in relation to the issues raised 

• To consider and comment on any plans of the external auditors 

• To comment on the scope and depth of the external audit work and to ensure 
it gives value for money 

• To consider any other reports by the external auditors 

Page 12



• To liaise with the appointed body over the appointment of the Council’s 
external auditor 

  
14 Internal Audit 

  

• To consider the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual audit opinion and the level of 
assurance given over the Councils Corporate governance arrangements 

• To consider regular reports, including statistics, abstracts and performance of 
the work of internal audit as presented by the Chief Internal Auditor 

• To consider and approve the annual Internal Audit plan ensuring that there is 
sufficient and appropriate coverage 

• To consider reports from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not 
implemented in accordance within the agreed timescale 

• To contribute to the annual audit plan 

• To comment on the scope and depth of the internal audit work and to ensure it 
gives value for money 

• To consider any other reports the Chief Internal Auditor may make to the 
Panel. 

  
15 Internal Control 
  

• To approve the adoption of the Annual Governance Statement to the Council 

• To ensure that an appropriate action is taken with respect the issues raised in 
the Annual Governance Statement. 

  
16 Risk Management  
  

• To approve the risk management strategy and review the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements, the control environment and associated anti-fraud 
and anti-corruption arrangements and seek assurances that action is being 
taken on risk related issues 

• To ensure that assurance statements, including the Annual Governance 
Statement properly reflect the risk environment 

• To review the Council’s risk register 
  
17 Governance 
  

• To consider the arrangements for Corporate Governance and to make 
appropriate recommendations to ensure Corporate Governance meets 
appropriate standards  

• To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other published 
standards and controls 

• To review any issues of governance referred to the Committee by internal or 
external audit 

• To take ownership of the Protocol on referring Matters to the External Auditor 

• To review the Anti-Fraud and Corruption policy 
  

Standards and Ethical Framework 
 

(a) To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members, (i.e. Elected and  
Co-opted) 

 

Page 13



(b) To assist Members to observe the Council’s Ethical Framework including the Code of 
Conduct. 

 
 

(c) To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Council’s Ethical Framework 
including the Code of Conduct. 

 
 

(d) To monitor the operation of the Council’s Ethical Framework including the Code of 
Conduct. 

 
 

(e) To advising, train or arranging to train Members on matters relating to the Council’s 
Ethical Framework including the Code of Conduct. 

 
 

(f) To determine written complaints made against a Member (including a Parish Council 
Member) alleging a breach of the Code of Conduct and taking any action that is 
deemed appropriate and permitted under the Localism Act 2011 and Regulations  
thereunder. 

 
 

(g) To exercise of () to () above in relation to the Parish Councils wholly or mainly in its 
area and the Members of those Parish Councils. 

 
 

(h) To keep under review and make recommendations to the Council on the Whistle-
Blowing Policy and Procedure. 

 

 

(i) To put in place and keep under review arrangements for monitoring Members’ 
performance. 

 

(j) To receive and consider reports on individual Members’ performance. 
 

 

(k) To decide any requests from a Member or Officer for indemnity as set out in the 
Council’s adopted Policy on Terms of Indemnity. 

 
18 Other  
  

(a) To liaise with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to ensure that the work of the two 
committees is complementary 

 
(b) To promote effective relationships between external audit, internal audit, inspection 

agencies and other relevant bodies to ensure that the value of the audit and 
inspection processes are enhanced and actively promoted 

 
(c) To consider financial and non-financial performance issues to the extent that this 

impacts upon financial management and governance. 
 

(d) The Committee shall, in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer and Chief finance 
Officer, produce an Annual Review of work completed and proposed and report on an 
exception basis through the Performance Report for Cabinet.  

 
19 The terms of reference of the Committee shall be reviewed annually 

Page 14



 
Determination Sub-Committee 
 
1. Terms of Reference 
 

The Sub-Committee is established to  
 

• determine complaints following an investigation. 

• give detailed consideration to revisions to the Code of Conduct as necessary for 
recommendation to the Committee. 

 
2. Following a hearing the Committee will make one of the following findings: 

 
(a) That the Member who was the subject of the hearing had not failed to comply with 

the Code of Conduct of the relevant  Authority concerned; 
 
(b) That the Member who was the subject of the hearing had failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct of the relevant Authority concerned, but that no action needs to 
be taken in respect of the matters which were considered at the hearing; or  

 
(c) That the Member who was the subject of the hearing had failed to comply with the 

Code of Conduct of the relevant Authority concerned and that a sanction should 
be imposed. 

 
3 If the Sub-Committee makes a finding under paragraph 2(c) in respect of a person who 

is no longer a Member of any authority that the SAC has responsibility for it shall censure 
that person. 

 
4. If the Sub-Committee makes a finding under paragraph 2(c) in respect of a person who 

is a serving Member of any authority that the Standards Advisory Committee has 
responsibility for, it shall impose any of, or a combination of, the following sanctions: 

 
(a) censure of that Member 
 
(b) restriction for a period not exceeding six months of that Member’s access to the 

premises of the relevant Authority or the resources of the relevant Authority 
provided that those restrictions: 

 
i. are reasonable and proportionate to the nature of the breach; 

 
ii. do not unduly restrict the person’s ability to perform the functions of a 

Member. 
 

(c) that the Member submits a written apology in a form specified by the Sub-
Committee; 

 
(d) that the Member undertakes such training as the Sub-Committee specifies; 
 
(e) that the Member participate in such conciliation as the Sub-Committee specifies; 

 
 
 
 

Page 15



5 Appointment and Composition of the Sub-Committee 
 

(a) The Sub Committee will be convened as necessary from the membership of the 
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee.  The Sub-Committee will therefore 
not have a fixed membership. 

 
(b) The Sub-Committee shall comprise five Members, of whom a maximum of three 

shall be elected members and no more than two should be Co-Opted 
Independent Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee. 

 
(c) The Sub-Committee shall elect a Chair at each hearing/meeting.  The Chair will 

be an elected Councillor. 
 

(d) The appointment and composition of the Sub-Committee shall increase to include 
a Parish Member (observer) of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
where the Sub-Committee is considering a report or recommendations that relate 
to a Parish Council Member.   

 
6 Quorum 
 

The quorum for a meeting of the Sub-Committee shall be three Members, two of whom 
must be elected Members and at least one Independent Member. When considering a 
matter relating to the conduct of a Member as Parish Councillor at least one Parish 
Council representative shall also be present. 

 
7 Frequency of Meetings 

 
The Sub-Committee shall meet as and when required to enable it to undertake its 
functions.  
 

Page 16



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO: Standards Advisory Committee  DATE:  17th March 2015 
  
CONTACT OFFICER:    Kevin Gordon, Monitoring Officer 
 01753 875213 
 
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
FOR INFORMATION 

 
SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY – CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

 This report updates members of the Standards Advisory Committee on the 
activity undertaken by the Council’s Monitoring Officer in relation to complaints 
received under the Code of Conduct. 

 

2. Recommendation(s)/Proposed Action 
 

The Committee is requested to note the report. 
 
3. Slough Joint Wellbeing Strategy Priorities 
 

The delivery of the Joint Wellbeing Strategy priorities is dependent on good 
governance arrangements being in place in order that the Council has a 
transparent and accountable process for effective decision-making.  This is 
underpinned by the Code of Conduct, which forms the bedrock of the conduct 
regime for Members in ensuring ethical behaviour and governance of the highest 
order is maintained.    
 

4.  Other Implications 
 
(a) Financial  
 
There are no financial implications of this report.  
 
(b) Human Rights Act and Other Legal Implications  
 
The Council is under a statutory duty to adopt a code of conduct maintain a 
register of members’ interests. 
 
(c) Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
It is important to ensure measures taken under the standards regime do not 
impact disproportionately on any group.  The Monitoring Officer retains a detailed 
list of subject Members and carries out a periodic audit check to ensure that 
application of the regime is equitable across specific groups of members having 
regard to race, gender or political group. 
 

Page 17

AGENDA ITEM 5



5. Supporting Information 
 

5.1 In its approved complaints process, the Council has agreed arrangements to 
delegate to the Monitoring Officer the initial decision on whether a complaint 
requires investigation, subject to consultation with the Independent Person.  In 
appropriate cases the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint 
informally without the need for a formal investigation.  When a complaint is 
referred for investigation, the Investigating Officer’s report will be reviewed by the 
Monitoring Officer, who will either send it for determination to a Standards 
Determination Sub-Committee set up for the purpose, or decide that no further 
action is required. 

 
5.2 The following table contains a summary of the complaints received from June 

2014 to date: 
 
  

Ref Subject 
Member – 
Borough / 
Parish 

Complainant Area of Code Outcome 

 

2014/03 
 

Borough 
Councillor 

 
Self Referral  

 
2.3 – bringing 
office into 
disrepute &  
2.7 – avoid conflict 
between personal 
interest and the 
public interest 

 
Referred for 
investigation  

 
6. Conclusion 
 
 The Committee will note that one complaint within a nine month period is 

relatively low. There is an impact on officer time/resources in dealing with 
complaints, in particular where they are referred for investigation. 

 
7. Background Papers 
 
 None. 

Page 18



MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD 2014/15 - STANDARDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
18.06.14 

 
 

10.09.14 
MEETING 

CANCELLED 

12.01.15 
MEETING 

CANCELLED 

17.03.15 

 
COUNCILLORS 

A Dhaliwal P - -  

 
A Dhillon P - -  

 
M Holledge P - -  

 
F Matloob P - -  

 
S Sandhu P - -  

 
K Usmani Ap - -  

 
INDEPENDENT 
MEMBERS 

Ron Roberts P 
- -  

 
Alan Sunderland P - -  

 
Graham Davies* - - -  

PARISH 
COUNCILLORS 

H S Gahir P 
- -  

 Scott Bryant P - -  

 Janice Finn Ab - -  

INDEPENDENT 
PERSON 

Fred Ashmore** Ap 
- -  

 Louis Lee** - - -  
 

P   = Present for whole meeting  P*  = Present for part of meeting   
Ap = Apologies given   Ab = Absent, no apologies given  
*    Graham Davies was appointed to the Committee in September 2014 
**  From September 2014 Louis Lee replaced Fred Ashmore as the Council’s appointed Independent Person.  

P
age 19

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting held on 18th June 2014
	4 Proposal to Merge Audit and Risk and Standards Advisory Committee
	5 Schedule of Activity - Code of Conduct
	6 Members Attendance Record

